M NUTES
SENATE FI NANCE COW TTEE
February 12, 2003
9:06 AM

TAPES

SFC-03 # 3, Side A
SFC 03 # 3, Side B

CALL TO ORDER

Co-Chair Gary WI ken convened the neeting at approxinmately 9:06 AM
PRESENT

Senat or Lyda Green, Co-Chair
Senator Gary W/ ken, Co-Chair
Senat or Con Bunde

Senator Ben Stevens

Senat or Lyman Hof f man

Senat or Donny d son

Al so Attendi ng: SENATOR JOHN CONDERY; SENATOR FRED DYSQN, SENATOR
HOLLI S FRENCH, SENATOR ROBI N TAYLOR, SENATOR THOVAS WAGONER, ROBERT
D. STORER, Executive Director, Al aska Permanent Fund Corporati on,
Departnent of Revenue; ERIC E. WOHLFORTH, Chair, Al aska Permanent
Fund Board of Trustees; CLARK GRUENING Vice Chair, Al aska
Permanent Fund Board of Trustees; CARL BRADY, Menber, Al aska
Per manent Fund Board of Trustees; WLLIAM A CORBUS, Conmi ssioner
El ect, Departnment of Revenue and Menber, Al aska Pernmanent Fund
Board of Trustees; MCHAEL J. O LEARY CFA, Executive Vice
President, Callan Associates Inc.; CHRIS PH LLIPS, D rector of
Fi nance, Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation, Departnent of Revenue

Attending via Teleconference: There were no teleconference
parti ci pants.

SUMVARY | NFORMATI ON

The Conm ttee heard an overview fromthe Permanent Fund Corporation
regarding the Fund’s current and projected financial status.

Presentation by the Permanent Fund Corporation Board of
Tr ust ees

SFC- 03 (1) 02/ 12/ 03



Co-Chair WIlken informed the Commttee that the Al aska Pernmanent
Fund Corporation’s presentation would include an introduction of
its Board of Trustees, a general update on issues bei ng addressed
by the Corporation, a capital market outlook, and a financial
forecast for fund growth and i ncone.

ROBERT D. STORER, Executive Director, Alaska Permanent Fund
Corporation introduced Eric Wlfforth who is serving a second term
as Chair of the Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation Board of
Tr ust ees.

ERI C WOHLFORTH, Chair, Al aska Pernmanent Fund Corporation Board of
Trustees, acknow edged C ark Guening, Carl Brady, and WIIliam
Corbus as nenbers of the Permanent Fund Corporation Board of
Trustees who were in attendance. He nentioned that other attendees
i nclude Bob Maynard and Allen Bufford, who, as nenbers of the
Fund’ s Council of Advisors, provide a professional “outside |ook
and a critical |look” as to how the Fund is perform ng. He noted
that today’s presentation would be conducted by M chael O Leary,
seni or officer of Callan Associates, a consulting firmthat reviews
and advi ses on the activities of the Fund’ s nmanagers and the Fund’ s
internal investnent strategies.

M. Storer inforned the Commttee that, in addition to generating a
five-year financial forecast based on market conditions, Callan
Associ ates perforns an annual review of the Fund’s capital markets
and asset allocations. He noted that the review, which includes the
earnings return expectations for each asset category such as real
estate, stocks, and bonds, is presented to the Corporation each
February in the form of an educational neeting. He renmarked that
the Corporation would address the review s findings during an
upcom ng March neeting.

M CHAEL J. O LEARY CFA, Executive Vice President, Callan Associ ates
Inc. referred the Commttee to the Callan Associates Inc. “2003
Capital Market Qutl ook Legislative Wrk Session” handout [copy on
file], dated February 2003. He stated that the information on page
two of the handout reflects that the years 2000, 2001, and 2002
were the first years since the 1930's that the Stock Market *“has
been down” three consecutive cal endar years. He stressed that these
three years fared worse than the market decline of the 1973-4 bear
mar ket and were simlar to “the market descent” of the 1930’ s.
However, he voiced optimsmthat these years were “the bottomof a
retractive bear market” that has been “very deep in terns of
percentage | 0ss.”

SFC- 03 (2) 02/ 12/ 03



M. O Leary stated that the Lenman Brothers (LB) Aggregate Bond
| ndex nunbers on the page reflect the “magnitude of the bond narket
returns” over the sane three-year period. He ventured that “the
rel ati ve performance di fference between stocks and bonds..has never
been greater,” and he identified declining interest rates as a
contributing factor to the “extraordinary” bond performance. He
stressed that the inplications of this bond nmarket trend would be
significant as the market noves forward.

M. O Leary continued that, additionally, the Standard and Poor
(S&P) Stock Index “rolling 20 quarter returns” graph titled
“Rolling 5 Year Returns for Stocks” depicts that, in 2002, stocks
had their first negative return since 1973-4. He noted that, if the
returns for 1998 and 1999 were renoved from the chart, “the
cumul ative returns woul d be horrendous because those two years were
so strong.”

M. O Leary stated that page four reflects cunulative return and
grom h conparison tables for stocks, bonds and cash for the
previous forty years, in five-year increnents. He expressed the
inportance of noting that overall stock returns have been
“confortably above the return” generated by bonds. He pointed out
that this is denoted by the 10.49 percent cumnul ative 40-year stock
return achieved in spite of the recent bear market. He conpared the
relative value of a dollar to stocks and bonds returns as depicted
in the table at the bottom of page four.

Co-chair W ken asked how a stock is defined in this revi ew.

M. O Leary replied that the stocks referred to in this research
are defined as the Standard and Poor (S&P) 500.

M. O Leary continued that while evidence such as a growi ng econony
i ndicates that the recession is comng to an end, the information
on page five addresses the current econom c environnent which
i ncludes: a weak business investnent trend; the |owest treasury
bond yield in forty years; a narrowed spread between corporate and
treasury bond yields; and the fact that the equity risk “premumis
unusually wide.” He stated “that people are very risk adverse,
currently,” which, he stressed, is supported by the public’s
i mredi ate and negative response to daily news reports regarding
terrorismand the result that this response has on the investnent
mar ket .

M. O Leary voiced that nunmerous state and | ocal governnments are in
“difficult financial circunstances” as a result of declining tax
revenues, continuing growh and expenditures, and “very
unfortunately, a real increase in pension funding requirenments” on

SFC- 03 (3) 02/ 12/ 03



the national level which is affecting both public and corporate
pensi on funds.

M. O Leary stated that the graph on page six “depicts the yield to
maturity for the bond market as neasured by the Lehnan Aggregate
Index.” He identified the first of the seven daily yield points
hi ghlighted on the graph as being Septenber 10, 2001, the day
before the terrorist attacks on New York Gty and the Pentagon. He
stated that this point signifies the beginning of a “dramatic”
daily yields “fall.” He stated that, “people running to quality,
drove the interest rates down” as a result of the federal
government “opening the faucet to provide sufficient liquidity in
the system” He continued that on Decenber 31, 2001 the interest
rates rose to approximately the sane | evel as before the Septenber
11'" terrorist attacks. He continued that during the first quarter
of 2002, interest rates increased, and an econom c recovery
appeared to be occurring; however, he shared, economc factors
began to decline and the “whol e i nvestnent grade bond market from
Triple A to B double A" continued in a dowward trend to “a very
low level” in Septenber 2002. He stated that the bond market
recovered at the beginning of the fourth quarter of 2002 “wth
interest rates spiking back up” then declining again at the end of
2002 to an interest rate of approximately four percent. However, he
expressed, during the first two days of 2003 “the yield to maturity
of the bond market increased approximately 25 basis points.”

M. O Leary stressed that the “yield to maturity on the bond market
is a good naive indicator of the rate of return” expected for
i nvest nent grade bond earnings over the next five years; however,
he shared, “there have been sone structural changes in the bond
mar ket in the conposition of this index so that as we | ook ahead,
this indicator would not be quite as reliable as it has been in the
past.” Nonethel ess, he continued it does provide “a starting point”
for what could be expected of a bond investnent.

M. O Leary explained that the graph on page seven conpares the S&P
500 earnings yield over a twenty year period to the correspondi ng
ten-year treasury bond yields. He pointed out that in 1981-2, the
treasury bond vyield, which is currently four percent, was 14
percent. He furthered that the stock market yield exceeded ten
percent in 1981-2; however, he qualified, its yield is also
currently four percent. He expressed that over tinme, “there is a
| i nkage between the price investors are willing to pay for future
earnings and the general |evel of interest rates as neasured by a
ri skless investnent” in a ten-year treasury bond.

M. O Leary noted that the |inkage between the S& Earning Yield
and the Ten-Year Treasury Yield is reflected in the ratio

SFC- 03 (4) 02/ 12/ 03



conparison chart at the bottom of page seven. He noted that in
1987, the graphing line dipped “very low which indicates that
consuners viewed stocks “as very expensive relative to interest
rates” at that time. He continued that this relationship was
“corrected” in the fourth quarter of 1987 when the stock market
“tanked” and stock values declined nore than twenty percent. He
noted that interest rates also declined at this tinme. He
characterized the years 1999 and 2000 as “bubbl e-mani a,” when the
mar ket was “absurdly” valued and “interest rates were conparatively
low.” He stated that the correction to this situation has been the
recent three-year “painful bear market.” He summarized that
currently, “stocks appear to be attractively priced relative to
treasuries.”

M. O Leary stated that page eight reflects a val uati on neasurenent
conparing the United States stock market to other national narkets.
He noted that, “all nmarkets appear to be below their long run
averages.”’

M. O Leary informed the Commttee that page nine identifies
features inbedded wthin the financial analysis including:
continuing economc recovery; continuing low inflation rates;
“conparatively little risk” of deflation; a slow ng of consuner
spending to align with disposable incone | evels because “everyone
who could refinance has already done so;” a slow stock nmarket
recovery; and a tapering off in the housing market as interest
rates begin to rise. He noted that it should be considered a
“bl essing” that the housing nmarket has remained as strong as it
has.

Co-Chair WI ken asked the problens created by defl ation.

M. O Leary voiced that “noderate inflation of three percent or
| ess” is healthy for the econony, as it nakes for “easy adjustnents
inrelative prices.” In response to Co-chair WIken's question, he
characterized an enpl oyee review as being simlar to the “scary
scenari 0” of an “deflationary environnent;” wherein, the enpl oyee
is told that as a reward for doing a great job, his or her salary
woul d be decreased only one percent rather than the four percent
designated in the budget. He commented that in a deflationary
environnent, it is hard “to pay off your debt.” He continued that
the value of a person’s honme “has been a great source of the growth
of equity;” however, he stressed, “in a protracted period, the
price” of a house would decline rather than being stable or
increasing. He declared that this would adversely affect an
i ndi vidual’s sense of well-being and the econony as a whol e.

Co-Chair WI ken asked when the United States experienced its nost

SFC- 03 (5) 02/ 12/ 03



recent deflationary period.

M. O Leary responded that the nost recent deflationary period
occurred in the 1930's. He continued that, within the last six
nont hs, national econom sts announced that people “were really
worried about” the risk of deflation occurring; however, “that risk
seens to have di m ni shed.”

Senat or Bunde commented that Al aska experienced a downturn in the
val ue of honmes during 1985-6, which, he rem nded the Commttee,
corresponded with, anong other factors, a decrease in State
spendi ng.

M. O Leary stated that the information on page ten provides
details fromthe five-year capital market projection that Callan
Associ ates, Inc. generates each year

M. O Leary explained that the chart on page el even identifies “the
m ddl e point of a range” of projected market possibilities, and
that the range is referred to as the Standard Deviation or risk
factor. He stated that Standard Deviation is further explained on
page twel ve.

M. O Leary noted that page 13 depicts the 2003 Capital Market
Projections. He pointed out that the 2002 inflation nunber
projection has been reduced from 2.9 percent to 2.6 percent in
2003, which, in effect, causes a 0.3 percent reduction “in the
expected return of every asset category.”

M. O Leary continued that the biggest change in this year’s annual
report when conpared to previous reports is “the change in the
expectation of bond return” as the result of the “substantial”
decline in interest rates. He stated that the 2002 bond return
projection was 5.75 percent; however, he noted, the actual return
for 2002 was ten percent, with four years remaining on that five-
year forecast. He stated that sone analysts consider Callan
Associ ates’ 2003 bond return projection of 4.75 percent optimstic;
while others consider the projection to be low, in light of the
2002 ten percent return. He noted the approximate 4.75 percent 2003
bond return would | ower the overall return level during the five-
year projection period.

M. O Leary continued that an internal debate occurred w thin
Call an Associ ates “about the |ikelihood of an equity return.” He
commented that, “over a protracted period of tinme, the real return
to common stock investors” has averaged six percent, “even
i ncorporating” the recent sharp decline in the stock market. He
voi ced that “we are closer to the end of a bear market than the

SFC- 03 (6) 02/ 12/ 03



beginning of a bear market,” and he comrented that it could be
argued that the expectation is “for an above average real return”
for the next five years. He stated that the 2003 forecast
identifies a 6.1 percent real return on the S& 500 and that,
including inflation the nomnal rate of return is projected to be
8.7 percent.

M. O Leary continued that the chart on page 13 conpares the 2002
projections to the 2003 capital narket projections for equities,
fixed income assets, inflation, and other investnents such as real
estate, and their corresponding projected annual returns and
standard devi ati ons. He commented that the Al aska Pernanent Fund
has benefited from its “substantial allocation” of real estate
since real estate has fared well during the recent market downturn
however, he noted, the real estate market, and in particular the
conpetitive leasing market situation, on the national |evel has
weakened.

M. O Leary indicated the graph on page 14 reflects the range of
return and standard devi ati on m xes using “the nost conservative to
very aggressive” 2002 equity nunbers and also reflects the range
using the 2003 projections. He explained that, in 2003, a
conservative and “low volatility” equity allocation percentage of
twenty percent woul d generate approxi mately a six percent return.

M. O Leary, referring to market risks such as terrorist attacks,
inflation, and a stagnating econony, stated that the five-year
mar ket projection detailed on page 15 takes into consideration the
current political conflict in the Mddle East with “the key
assunption” that were mlitary action to occur, it would be
contained to that area and would be short in duration. He stated
that this projection nust be revisited, were the conflict scenario
to differ fromthis assunption

M. O Leary continued that the chart on page 16 applies the 2003
financial projections to the Al aska Permanent Fund Corporation
(APFC) portfolio conmponents. He conpared the current portfolio
conponent all ocation percentages as established “by the policy of
the Fund” to various asset allocations referred to as “m xes.” He
declared that the target allocations are projected to result in a
2003 expected rate of return of approximately 7.38 percent with a
standard deviation of 10.84 percent. He explained that the 10.84
percent standard devi ation nunber indicates that the range of the
return could be between negative 3.56 percent and positive 18.22
percent .

M. O Leary stated that, “the Permanent Fund’s current policy is
essentially at the statutory Iimt for equity exposure, exclusive

SFC- 03 (7) 02/ 12/ 03



of the basket clause.” He explained that, “the basket clause
provi des added flexibility” and in the case of a strong stock
market rally, would “allow for the percent allocated to equities to
be increased.” He continued that the basket clause also allows the
Corporation “to invest in areas that otherwi se are not explicitly
approved by statute.”

M. OLeary utilized the term“efficient frontier” to refer to the
mar ket position in which the asset allocations produce the
projected rate of real return. He nmentioned that the chart on page
17 depicts the “efficient frontier” and the current “target m x” of
i nvest nents.

M. O Leary continued that the bar graph on page 18 illustrates the
target rate of return and the various rates of returns generated by
differing asset allocation mxes for a one-year period. He stated
that the targeted asset allocation mx’s nediumrange of return is
projected to be 7.38 percent; the 5'" percentile projection is 26.62
percent; and that the 95'" percentile projection, “which is two
standard deviations,” is a negative 8.93 percent.

M. O Leary noted that page 19 and page 20 portray the rate of
return over a three-year and five-year period, respectfully. He
noted that the contrasting “worst and best case scenarios are both
| ess extrene” than those experienced in a one-year period, and, he
continued, the five-year period range of returns has the | owest
extrenes. He reiterated that, “nost of the benefit derived from
diversification really occurs within a five-year period.”

M. O Leary characterized the information on page 21 as a
“forewarning” of the inpact of the statutory limtation of 55
percent asset allocation in equities. He explained that as the
al l ocation “noves toward higher volatility, higher risk, and higher
return alternatives, that’s when the statutory constraint begins to
have an effect.”

M. O Leary, referring to the review s conclusion on page 22,
stated that an inportant question is whether the fund's policy is
on the efficient frontier, and he concluded, “the answer is yes.”
He continued that the policy is “prudent and produces the highest
expected return for the level of risk that is undertaken.” However,
he expressed, in the auspice of today s five-year projection, “the
policy mx is inconsistent wwth the obtainnent of a five percent
real return target.”

M. O Leary declared that this is the first tine the Permanent

Fund’s rate of return on its investnents has faced this situation,
and the reason, he clarified, is because bonds are a “very

SFC- 03 (8) 02/ 12/ 03



substantial part of the Permanent Fund portfolio” and “the expected
real return on bonds is so low.” He stressed that after factoring
in inflation, the projected real return on bonds would be 2.1
percent, which is below the projected five-year return of five
percent. He stated that the Pernmanent Fund Board of Trustees would
be addressing this issue. He noted “that there have been other
periods in history when the financial markets haven't produced the
types of targeted real returns that people were striving for, and
that can change, but right now.i.t is unreasonable to expect a five
percent real return over the next five years.”

Co-Chair WIken asked for further information regarding the various
market mx allocations depicted on page 20, particularly
information about Mx 3 in which all of the projected returns are
positive.

M. O Leary responded that Mx 3 reflects a 95 percent probability
of a 0.09 percent return with a nedian return of 7.12 percent. He
commented that M xes 4 through 8 reflect |arger nedians than the
Target allocation nedian of 7.38 percent; however, he noted “there
is also an increased chance of sone negative returns over that
five-year period.”

Co-chair WI ken understood, therefore, that the efficient frontier
woul d be between M x Three and Four.

M. OLeary referred the Commttee to the asset allocation m xtures
detailed on page 16. He explained that Mx 3, with a donestic or
non-dol | ar bond conponent of 43 percent, reflects “a heavier bond
conponent” than M xes 4 through 8; however, he clarified, these
various “mxes are all efficient in that they produce the highest
return possible for that level of risk.” He qualified that these
m xes “are riskier, that is there is nore volatility, but that
doesn’t nmake them any | ess appropriate.”

Senat or Bunde noted that in previous presentations, M. O Leary
projected a targeted goal of an eight percent return with an actua
reali zed gain of five percent. However, now, he noted, the targeted
goal reflects a |lower return. He asked whether this is the result
of the lower inflation factor.

M. O Leary replied yes, “a lower total return is in part a
function of a reduction in the inflation nunber.” He noted that at
the tinme of the eight percent return projections the inflation
factor was approximately three percent. He continued that this
would result in a five percent rate of real return were this the
only factor. However, he continued, another factor in the reduction
of returns is the “significant change in the level of interest

SFC- 03 (9) 02/ 12/ 03



rates.”

Senat or Bunde comrented that Permanent Fund Divi dends have been
cal cul ated based on a five percent rate of return.

M. Storer concurred that the dividend projections were factored at
a five percent rate of real return. He noted that upcom ng
Per manent Fund Division testinony woul d address this matter.

Senat or Bunde asked whether the price of oil is a factor in the
proj ections.

M. O Leary assured the Commttee that the issue of fluctuating oi
prices is addressed in the report.

Senat or Bunde asked whether this fluctuation affected the accuracy
of the 2002 projections.

M. Storer noted that the analysis is conducted on a five-year
basis rather than on an annual basi s.

M. O Leary furthered that Callan Associates routinely conducts an
annual review of previous five-year projections to ascertain “how
accurate they were.” He stressed that the objective is for the
projections to be within the forecast range, both within each asset
allocation and as a total portfolio. He announced that this
obj ective has been achieved with one exception in which the equity
return was higher than projected; however, he clarified, the total
portfolio projections were within the projected range.

SFC 03 # 3, Side B 09:53 AM

Co-chair WI ken asked the effect of the growmh of global industry
on the American econony, as, he noted, Anerican jobs have been | ost
and capital investnents into the U S. econony have been reduced.

M. O Leary responded that the gl obalization concern has pronpted
responses “fromfree marketers arguing that globalization benefits
all by hel ping accelerate growh and efficiency.” He stated that
“fortunately” the United States’ econony is flexible and better
able to cope with this issue than other nations. He continued that
“conposition of the United States econony” is transitioning toward
becom ng nore service and high technol ogy oriented, and that “the
tradi tional manufacturing base” is now being serviced from abroad.
However, he noted, foreign economes are inpacting Anmerican
manuf acturi ng and high end, traditional blue-collar jobs, and he
stressed that people would require retraining “in the service
equi val ent of those jobs.” He nentioned that an increase in foreign

SFC- 03 (10) 02/ 12/ 03



i ndustry sales also could affect inflation. He explained that the
United States’ dollar value is weakened as the cost of inporting
goods increases. He stated that this issue has resulted in a
variety of inflation range projections wthin the financial
i ndustry.

Senat or W1 ken asked whet her gl obalization has been a significant
factor in the recent recession in Anmerica.

M. O Leary voiced that he could not adequately respond to that
guesti on.

Co-chair WIken thanked M. O Leary for the presentation

M. Storer inforned the Commttee that Chris Phillips would present
the current Pernmanent Fund bal ance, nobdels, and projections. He
stated that he would then conment about the Fund’ s perfornmance and
asset allocations.

CHRIS PHLLIPS, Drector of Finance, Alaska Pernmanent Fund
Corporation, Departnent of Revenue, spoke regarding the *Al aska
Per manent Fund Brief history and financial outlook for Fund growth
and i nconme” booklet [copy on file], dated February 2003. She noted
that the history of the Permanent Fund total value, which is
conprised of the Fund principal and the earnings reserve account,
is portrayed on the first page of the booklet. She noted that the
Fund’ s bal ance, as of 12/31/02, was $22.9 billion and is conprised
of the following: $7.5 billion of dedicated oil revenues; $7.5
billion from inflation proofing; and $7 billion from special
appropriations. She noted that the special appropriations conmponent
is conprised of “special appropriations fromthe general fund in
the early years and recently fromthe earnings reserve account into
principal.”

Senat or Bunde asked which of these three units the Corporation
recogni zes as the corpus of the Fund.

Ms. Phillips responded that the Corporation recognizes the corpus
to be the entire principal balance of $22 billion.

Ms. Phillips noted that the graph on page 2 identifies the earnings
reverse account balance. She explained that the $3.5 billion
earnings reserve account balance on June 30, 2000 is the value
after the State accounted for the June 2000 dividend and inflation
proofing appropriations. She noted that the earnings reserve
account is “split between the realized earnings reserve and the
unrealized earnings reserve.” She explained that the realized
earnings reserve is defined as the “cash flow frominterest from
bonds, dividends from stocks, and cash flow from Corporation real
estate holdings, as well “as the realized gain or |oss on manager

SFC- 03 (11) 02/ 12/ 03



sal e of assets.”

Ms. Phillips continued that the unrealized earnings reserve incone
is the accunul ated appreciation of the assets that remain in the
Cor poration. She noted that the Fund market value as of 12/31/02
was approximately $900 mllion, conprised of $1.2 billion in
realized earnings reserve and a loss of $300 mllion in the
unrealized earnings reserve. She explained that the earnings
reserve account absorbs the market volatility for the entire Fund.

Ms. Phillips stated that the chart on page 3 explains how the
earnings reserve account balance has been reduced from a $6.5
billion balance on June 30, 2000, to the $900 mllion bal ance on
Decenber 31, 2002.

Senator B. Stevens asked for confirmation that “the Earnings
Reserve absorbs the entire volatility of all the principal.”

Ms. Phillips responded that is correct.

Senator B Stevens surm sed that, “the principal is the dedicated
revenue in nomnal dollars, not in dollars that have any increased
gain.”

Ms. Phillips responded, “yes, it is a nom nal notational nunber
and the entire market volatility is recorded in the earnings
reserve.”

Senator B. Stevens concluded, therefore, that $22 billion is the
val ue of the dollars deposited into the fund.

Ms. Phillips concurred. She reiterated that the Earnings Reserve
account bal ance of $6.5 billion at the begi nning of June 2000, as
depicted in the chart on page three, “already” factors in the
renoval of the June 2000 dividend and inflation proofing dollars.
She explained that the chart additionally reflects all activity

since that date, including: a gain of $2.4 billion for two years of
interest, dividends and real estate; a negative $0.8 billion in
realized | osses; a negative $1.3 billion total for the years 2001
and 2002 inflation-proofing transfers to the principal; a negative
$2.0 billion payout for two years of distributions for Pernmanent
Fund Dividends; and a negative $3.9 billion loss reflecting two

years of changes in unrealized holdings that the State owns. She
concluded that the total Earnings Reserve Bal ance as of Decenber
31, 2002 is $0.9 billion.

Senat or Bunde opined that the fund could be recogni zed as being
“double inflation proofed.” He exanpled normal inflation proofing
as the fund earning eight percent, including a three percent
inflation-proofing factor; thereby resulting in a real gain of five
percent. He continued that the “current practice is to take noney

SFC- 03 (12) 02/ 12/ 03



out of the earnings reserve and, once nore, inflation-proof” the
fund. He asked whether *“it is fair to describe this practice as
doubl e inflation proofing.”

Ms. Phillips responded that the State nmakes the decision on the
anount to be granted to inflation proof the fund each year and
“actually physically noves it from the earnings reserve to
principal.”

M. Storer pointed out “if the five percent limt” were included in
the State’s constitution the second action of noving noney fromthe
Ear ni ngs Reserve Account to the principal would not be required. He
continued that were statute changed, “the noney woul d reside there
but would not be formally noved to the principal, therefore, it
woul d not be considered as inflation proofing.”

Senat or Bunde concl uded that an actual transfer of noney fromthe
earni ngs reserve woul d be considered inflation proofing; however,
he continued, if the inflation proofing calcul ations were nade but
not transferred, it would not be considered as such.

M. Storer noted that a State statute specifically mandates a
reduction be reflected in the earnings reserve account with a
corresponding increase reflected in the principal account. He
continued that “absent the constitutional anendnent nenoriali zing
the limtation, if that stayed, then you would not in fact be
inflation proofing then you would really be increasing the size of
the earnings reserve which could be a appropriated at a future
date.”

M. Storer explained the bar chart on page three, titled “Fund’'s
total return.” He stated that the total Fund ®“annualized return”
over the last 18.75 years is 9.6 percent, and that the five-year
return of eight percent was projected prior to the February 2003
report from Callan Associates. He noted the projected rate woul d be
adjusted to reflect the report. He explained that the chart also
i ndicates the negative total returns of the Fund in the fiscal
years 2001, 2002, and 2003. He remarked that the negative returns
could not be ignored. He continued that, “it is clear that during
this bear market the Fund has suffered along with everyone el se.”
He described a Division evaluation that judges the performance of
the Al aska Permanent Fund agai nst other public fund peer groups,
“predom nately retirement funds”, which found that the Fund is
faring approximately two percent better than other funds.

SENATOR JOHN CONDERY asked the | oss the Fund has experienced, “in
hard dollars”, during the |ast three years.

M. Storer referred the Commttee to the earnings reserve

reconciliation chart on page three that specifies $800 nmillion in
realized | osses and negative $3.9 billion in depreciation.

SFC- 03 (13) 02/ 12/ 03



Senator Cowdery declared that this would affect “the dividend
payout by approximately a billion dollars a year.”

Ms. Phillips clarified that the dividend fornula utilizes a five-
year average, and that the previous two fiscal year appropriations
were approximately one billion dollars. She continued that the
average appropriation is expected to be reduced as the ol der
hi gher earning years are renoved fromthe five-year cal cul ation.

Senat or Bunde, referencing testinony that the Fund' s earnings are
“on target,” asked whether earnings in the worst-case scenario of
the 95" percentile, which is within the targeted range, are
possi bl e.

M. Storer informed the Commttee that the Fund “is experiencing
| ower case probability in virtually every instance from market
value, fromreturns, fromthe dividend payout, etc.” He stated that
“it was studied, it was understood when we adopted the asset
allocation that this was a probability, albeit an extrene
probability.” He reiterated that, “this is one of the worst bear
mar kets since the *30s.”

M. Storer stated that page four denotes the Fund s current asset
al l ocation as being: 37 percent invested in the donestic stock
market; 16 percent invested in international equity market; 35
percent invested in United States investnent grade bonds rather
than high yield bonds; two percent invested in non-dollar bonds
conprised of sovereigns of high quality countries such as Engl and,
France and Germany; and ten percent in real estate.

M. Storer noted that the chart on page four supports M. O Leary’s
testinmony regarding the probability of achieving a goal over a
five-year period. M. Storer referenced the chart information that
states, “thereis a lin 4 (25% chance that the Fund will earn a
negative return in any single year, there is only a 1 in 20 (5%
chance over a 5-year period and a 1 in 100 (1% chance over a 10-
year period of a negative return” if current asset allocations were
mai ntai ned. He enphasized the inportance of adopting “the
appropriate asset allocation” that conbines near and long term
obj ectives, and in holding that course. He explained, "Funds that
shift and react to near-term news are the ones that are the
unsuccessful funds ultimately because they are al ways responding to
yesterday’ s headlines.”

Senat or Bunde understood M. O Leary to say that the Fund woul d not
earn five percent under the asset allocation restrictions that have
been placed on the Corporation. Therefore, he asked whether the
Cor poration would be requesting changes to be made involving the
current asset allocation restrictions.

SFC- 03 (14) 02/ 12/ 03



M. Storer responded that the Corporation recently “reconstituted”
its Board of Trustees and “reforned” its Legislative Commttee. He
continued that the Board would be famliarizing itself wth
numer ous i ssues, including the five percent clause and eval uati ng
whet her the basket cl ause shoul d be expanded.

Ms. Phillips stated that the chart on page five portrays the
results of statistical nodels that evaluate and project future
earning returns. She explained that these “returns are just not a
firmnunber, but a range around an expected val ue.” She voi ced that
t he range nodel devel oped by Callan Associates is applied two tines
a year and “incorporates market volatility into the projected
outcones” of its “300 scenarios of capital market returns.” She
stated that the charts depict “an array of outcomes with their
associated probabilities.” She stated that all nodels contain
assunptions, such as: the fall revenue forecast; the dividend
formula as defined in statute; as well as the nost recent financial
data. She explained various conponents of the graph, and she
stressed that, “the range of market val ue does al ready assune that
t he dividend has been deducted fromthis market value.”

Ms. Phillips stated that the chart at the bottom of page five,
depicts the range of the realized earnings reserve projected for FY
03 through FY 08. She rem nded the Commttee that the earnings
reserve, conbined with the principal, conprise the total Fund
val ue.

Ms. Phillips continued that the chart at the top of page six
reflects the range of the total earnings reserve. She specified
that the realized earnings reserve is the cash flow Furthernore,
she asserted, it is the portion of the Fund on which the pernmanent
fund dividend allocation is calculated. She noted, “the total
earni ngs reserve includes the realized earnings and the accumnul at ed
mar ket appreciation or depreciation on the assets.”

Ms. Phillips communicated that the chart at the bottom of page six
projects the range of per capita dividends for the current fiscal
year and the subsequent five years.

Co-chair WI ken asked for further information regarding the *Range
of total earnings reserve” chart on page six, specifically the
information pertaining to FY 08. He voiced the understandi ng that,
in FY 08, there is a 90 percent chance that the earnings reserve
woul d reflect a negative anount.

Ms. Philips replied that these nunbers project a ten percent
probability that the fund would reflect a negative $1.4 billion or
| ess or a 90 percent chance that it would be negative $1.4 billion
or greater.

Co-Chair WIken asked for further explanation about the FY 08

SFC- 03 (15) 02/ 12/ 03



earnings in the Range of total earnings reserve chart on page si x.

Ms. Phillips provided further interpretation regarding the
projected totals for FY 08. She rem nded the Commttee that the
total anmpbunt reflected in this chart does not contain the noney
dedi cated for the permanent fund dividends and for the inflation
proofing transfer as they are already subtracted fromthe total.

Senat or Bunde asked for clarification that the $400 pernmanent fund
dividend levels projected in FY 05 and FY 06 are based on a five-
year average that includes years in which the fund’ s earnings were
in a negative range.

Ms. Phillips concurred, and noted that the average is | owering as
t he hi gher earning years are renoved fromthe five-year cal cul ation
formula. She stated that the nonthly-realized earnings of
approximately $70 mllion is a known factor; however, she
expl ained, the nmanagers’ buy and sell activity and market
appreci ati on or depreciation are unknowns.

Ms. Phillips remarked that the chart on page seven “reflects the
conpari son of the historical and projected realized i ncone of the
Fund.” She stated that this information is overlaid with actual and
projected State oil revenue. She stated that this information
anticipates the realized income from the Permanent Fund to
i ncrease, while revenues fromoil decrease.

Co-chair W1 ken ascertained from the chart that by FY 2018, oi
revenue deposited into the general fund is projected to be $500
mllion and Permanent Fund revenue is projected to be $3.2 billion.

Ms. Phillips concurred; however, she rem nded the Comm ttee that
t hese nunbers do not account for market volatility.

Senat or Bunde asked when further direction fromthe Board m ght be
anti ci pat ed.

M. Storer inforned the Commttee that the newy reconstituted
Al aska Pernmanent Fund Board of Trustees recently nmet for the first
time. He shared that conmmttees were forned, sonme committee
neeti ngs were schedul ed, and that the next schedul ed Board neeting
is March 25 and 26, 2003. He voiced that the Legislative Commttee
woul d probably neet prior to the next Board neeting.

Co-chair W1l ken congratulated the new appointees to the Al aska
Per manent Fund Board of Trustees.

ADJ CQURNIVENT

Co-Chair Gary WI ken adjourned the neeting at 10:20 AM

SFC- 03 (16) 02/ 12/ 03



